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Call for Tenders for the SharePoint Implementation, 

Planning, Development, and Project Consulting - 

Questions and answers 

Question 1: 

You mention on page 4,  

“The WCO’s current state is SharePoint online 365 with approximately: 

 Total number of 11 Teams sites 

 Total SP storage of 4 TB 

 Total of 2.5 million files on network drives included in 300 000 folders 

 Total of around 4 TB on network drives 

 Total of 300 employees” 

We understand that this is the current state on the windows server (and not on SP Online) that needs to be 

migrated to SP online. Is our understanding correct? 

Answer: 

Yes, this is the current status on the existing file drives 

Question 2: 

Would it be possible to send the proposal electronically for environmental purposes to the email 

procurement@wcoomd.org following the same structure as indicated in the tender specifications? 

Answer: 

As long as all requirements detailed in the tender specifications are duly met, it is acceptable to send your 

offer by email to procurement@wcoomd.org. Please make sure to send separate electronic files for the 

financial offer on the one hand and the technical/administrative offer on the other. 

Question 3: 

Is there any timeplan required by WCO for the completion of the project or at least for phases 1 and 2? 

Should we submit together with our offer a proposed timeplan? 

Answer: 

There is not any specific schedule required. Bidders needs to submit the timeplan together with their 

proposal. Evaluation of the schedule is part of the overall evaluation process of this tender. 

mailto:procurement@wcoomd.org
mailto:procurement@wcoomd.org
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Question 4: 

We see in section 2.1  

“All proposals will be examined by the following process: 

Step 1: Confirmation of Compliance with the Mandatory Requirements 

Technical Offers will be reviewed for compliance with the Mandatory Requirements described in Annex “IV” 

(Technical Offer Requirements and Evaluation) of the RFP to confirm that the information, ….. 

Step 2: Evaluation of Rated Requirements (100 points) (65%) 

…...” 

 

In annex iv we do not see any Mandatory requirements but instead only Rated requirements. Could you 

please confirm that we have to respond only the Rated requirements described in Annex IV? 

Answer: 

Yes, the Annex IV contains only the rated requirements. 

Question 5: 

We see in section 2.2.3 Experience of the supplier the following requirement 

“The supplier should have experience working on similar projects related to SharePoint 

implementation/migration and creation of Intranet in the past three (3) years, in particular, working for 

medium to large companies or Organizations. 

The supplier should have specific experience in operation in the IT sector for a minimum of five (5) years. 

The supplier should demonstrate its capacity to mobilize teams on an ad-hoc basis and deliver the products 

ordered in a timely manner.” 

 

However, we do not see in section 3.1 any document where we can demonstrate these requirements. Could 

you please advice whether we should prepare an additional document to indicate our experience? Maybe 

under the "administrative documents" section in 3.1, where "A sheet describing the supplier's professional 

activities" is requested 

Answer: 

This is to be added as point b of chapter 3.1 “Information document on the supplier’s expertise” which refers 
to Annex IV. Criterion R1 and R3. 
 
Years of operation and capacity to mobilize team can indeed be demonstrated in 3.1 A. 
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Question 6: 

In section 2.3 Team composition and qualification requirements for key experts we read the following 

“The minimum requirements in terms of competence for the account/project manager and the leadership 

teams and their backups are stated below.” 

We understand that the requirements for the PM and the proposed resources are the ones described in R3-

Project team in the "technical offer requirements and evaluation" document". Could you please confirm or 

clarify? 

Answer: 

You can see requirements in chapter 2.3, chapter 4.4 and (mostly) in R3 of the annex IV 

Question 7: 

In case of subcontracting we understand that for each subcontractor we have to submit the information 

required in section “a) Administrative documents” plus one document signed be the lead bidder indicated the 

proportion of tasks attributed to the subcontractor. Could you please confirm or clarify? 

Answer: 

Yes, indeed we confirm your interpretation. As mentioned in item 3.11 of the Call for tenders: (…) Suppliers 

must indicate in their tenders the amount of the contract (if any) that they intend to subcontract to third 

parties, as well as the identity and availability of the potential subcontractor(s). (…) Where subcontracting is 

envisaged, evidence of the potential subcontractors’ ability to perform the tasks entrusted to them shall be 

included in the tender. Such evidence is the same as that also required from the suppliers, as indicated 

below. 

Question 8: 

In case of administrative documents (company register, balance sheets, etc.) in other language other than 

English or French but in one of the official EU languages is this acceptable. Or you need translated 

documents? 

Answer: 

Documents provided must be in one of the two (2) official languages of the WCO (French or English) as 

determined by the Convention establishing the Customs Co-operation Council and we cannot accept 

documents in other languages (even if written in another official EU language). 

Question 9: 

In relation to the selection criteria indicated in section 4.3 could you please clarify the following? We see the 

following requirements 
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The selection criteria are: 

 Submission of documents listed (see part 2.1); à Question: We understand that we need to submit 

only our response to ANNEX IV Rated requirements. Could you please confirm or clarify? 

 Submission of information related to the supplier’s expertise and the experience of each of the 

involved staff members (see parts 2.1 and 3.4); à Question: We understand that we need to submit 

only our response to ANNEX IV Rated requirements and this is evaluated in the R3 criterion. Could 

you please confirm or clarify? 

 Provision of a proposal that meets the requirements set out in the specifications and testifies to the 

supplier’s ability to provide the services requested, (see parts 2.1 and 3.4)à Question: We 

understand that we need to submit only our response to ANNEX IV Rated requirements. Could you 

please confirm or clarify? 

 Submission of a financial proposal (see Annex I) à Question: No further question 

 

Answer (in green color): 

 Submission of documents listed (see part 2.1); à Question: We understand that we need to submit 

only our response to ANNEX IV Rated requirements. Could you please confirm or clarify?  

All administrative requirements to be delivered are listed in chapter 3.1 A 

More specifically to part 2.1, indeed this refers to annex IV rated requirements. 

 Submission of information related to the supplier’s expertise and the experience of each of the 

involved staff members (see parts 2.1 and 3.4); à Question: We understand that we need to submit 

only our response to ANNEX IV Rated requirements and this is evaluated in the R3 criterion. Could 

you please confirm or clarify? 

Indeed, this refers to annex IV rated requirements 

 Provision of a proposal that meets the requirements set out in the specifications and testifies to the 

supplier’s ability to provide the services requested, (see parts 2.1 and 3.4)à Question: We 

understand that we need to submit only our response to ANNEX IV Rated requirements. Could you 

please confirm or clarify? 

Indeed, this refers to annex IV rated requirements 

 Submission of a financial proposal (see Annex I) à Question: No further question 

Question 10: 

In Award criterion 3 we read: “The following information will need to be provided by the supplier in order to 

assess this criterion:”, while no further information is offered after this sentence. We understand that the 

information required to be provided is detailed in ANNEX IV, Requirement R3, Project Team. Could you 

please confirm or further clarify? 

Answer: 

Bidders needs to submit CV of their proposed team. To review what has to be specified, please refer to the 

Annex IV, item R3 
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Question 11: 

In the template Annex I there is a sheet “Price for T&M – for CR” where we need to submit one rate per 

profile. Could you please clarify the following? 

 In column B Cost per unit of time, do we have to submit hourly rates or daily rates of the proposed 

profiles? 

 In column B Cost per unit of time, do we have to submit rates for onsite services (WCO premises) or 

offsite (contractors premises)?  

 Are we allowed to further add one column to add both onsite and offsite rates? 

 Could you please clarify what you expect in column C – proposed unit of time and column D number 

of unit time per day? We understand that since we do not know the details of a CR at this point of 

time, these two columns multiplied just give the daily rate of the consultant as in the example below. 

Could you please confirm our understand or clarify what these two columns represent?  

 A fictitious example for a daily rate of 800 EUR for a pm would be the following. 

Price for 
Maintenance 

activities 

Cost per unit 
of time * 

proposed unit 
of time (2 

hours of work 
max) 

number of unit of time per day 

Project Manager 
 100 (hourly 
rate)  1 hour  8 units per day 

 

Thus the hourly rate of a PM is 100 and the daily 800. Could you please confirm that you indeed need the 

daily rate of all profiles and not a fixed price for maintenance activities? 

Answers (in green color): 

 In column B Cost per unit of time, do we have to submit hourly rates or daily rates of the proposed 

profiles? 

It is up to the bidder to propose the rate 

 In column B Cost per unit of time, do we have to submit rates for onsite services (WCO premises) or 

offsite (contractors premises)?  

Most implementation (if not all) can be done remotely. Feel free nevertheless to suggest different 

rates for onsite and for offsite service   

 Are we allowed to further add one column to add both onsite and offsite rates? 

Yes 

 Could you please clarify what you expect in column C – proposed unit of time and column D number 

of unit time per day? We understand that since we do not know the details of a CR at this point of 

time, these two columns multiplied just give the daily rate of the consultant as in the example below. 

Could you please confirm our understand or clarify what these two columns represent?  

For example, if your proposed unit is 1 hour and your team works 8 hours a day, you can write 1 

hour in column C and 8 hours a day in column D  

if your proposed unit is 30 minutes and your team works 8 hours a day, you can write 30 minutes in 

column C and 16 minutes a day in column D 

 A fictitious example for a daily rate of 800 EUR for a pm would be the following. 
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Price for 
Maintenance 

activities 

Cost per unit 
of time * 

proposed unit 
of time (2 

hours of work 
max) 

number of unit of time per day 

Project Manager 
 100 (hourly 
rate)  1 hour  8 units per day 

 

Thus the hourly rate of a PM is 100 and the daily 800. Could you please confirm that you indeed need the 

daily rate of all profiles and not a fixed price for maintenance activities? 

The file is also for CR during the timeframe of the project. We are not interested into a fixed price for 

maintenance activities 

Question 12: 

Answers (in green color): 

In the "annex-iv-technical-offer-requirements-and-evaluation" document, you are asking for two references in 
the Rated Requirements R1 and one reference for each option.  
a. Can we provide more than the requested number of references (2) for R1 in order to collectively cover all 
of the 4 areas?  or do we need to stick to the exact number of references you are asking? You can provide 
more than two references 
b. Can we provide more than one reference for each option? You can provide more than one reference 

Question 13: 

Answers (in green color): 

In the financial offer, the "costs of licenses" tab refers to “applications licenses”. 

a. Does it represent optional licenses that could be necessary for the usage of development tools?  If there 
are licenses needed for this project, you should mention it there with the pricing 
b. Do we have to include licenses for SharePoint, Office 365, and other Microsoft Licenses of production 
tools? WCO already has M365 Business Premium licenses for its employee (see 1.1 of the RFP) 
c. Don’t you have a direct agreement with Microsoft for such licenses? WCO already has M365 Business 
Premium licenses for its employee (see 1.1 of the RFP) 

Question 14: 

Answers (in green color): 

In the "annex-iv-technical-offer-requirements-and-evaluation" document, both the Rated Requirements and 
the Options are described. In the “sharepoint-migration-call-for-tenders” document, for the offer evaluation 
we only see that the evaluation corresponds to the 100 points of the Rated Requirements. Are the options 
and their 40 points also part of the evaluation process? 

The 140 points for core project + options will be transformed in to the 100 points mentioned in the 
“Evaluation of rated requirements”.  
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Question 15: 

Answers (in green color): 

What is the estimated storage increase by year? 
We don’t forecast a high increase of storage needs for the next few years. 

Note, WCO has already M365 Business Premium licenses for its employees (see 1.1 of the RfP). Future 

evolutions of licenses will be directly purchased by WCO  

Question 16: 

Answers (in green color): 

How many documents must be signed by year? 
The work under this project is to implement the workflow for digital signatures (WCO does not yet have a 

license for the eSignature solution. The costs of this license of the digital signature solution are outside the 

budget of this project and should not be quoted by the bidder). Note that bidders can suggest an e-signing 

software of their preference. 

Question 17: 

Answers (in green color): 

To be able to handle the latest Q&As and clarifications, and for providing you with the best quality offer, we 
would like to benefit of a deadline extension of two weeks. Can you extend the deadline for two weeks? 
Unfortunately, it is not possible to extend the deadline. 

Question 18: 

Answers (in green color): 

We are intending to use a subcontractor for some of the tasks. We will provide you with a letter of intent 
(LOI) from this subcontractor. Do you need other documents or information from our subcontractor? 
As mentioned in item 3.11 of the Call for tenders: (…) Suppliers must indicate in their tenders the amount of 

the contract (if any) that they intend to subcontract to third parties, as well as the identity and availability of 

the potential subcontractor(s). (…) Where subcontracting is envisaged, evidence of the potential 

subcontractors’ ability to perform the tasks entrusted to them shall be included in the tender. Such evidence 

is the same as that also required from the suppliers, as indicated below. 
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Question 19: 

Answers (in green color): 

In the R3 Rated Requirement – Project Team, you are asking for the qualification of the member of the 
proposed team: 

 

a. Should we provide you with the CV/resume of the team members or a with table containing the 

list of the team member and their corresponding qualifications? 

Bidders need to submit CV of their proposed team. To review what has to be specified, please 

refer to Annex IV, item R3 

 

b. Can the team members be anonymous and identified by their profile? 

They can be anonymous however their CVs need to reflect their seniority and professional 

experience. WCO will keep CV confidential. 

 

“For any modifications in the team at the beginning or during the project, the CV of the new 

proposed member of the team must be validated by the WCO”. (see chapter 2.3) 

Question 20: 

Answers (in green color): 

Kindly clarify what "conclusion of a contract" means in this context. 

Signing of a contract 

Question 21: 

Answers (in green color): 

What are the different sources of document storage in WCO currently in additional to existing SharePoint 

and network drives? 

Existing SharePoint and the current existing filefolders are the two sources 

Question 22: 

Answers (in green color): 

Are the existing 11 team sites in SharePoint Onlne setup using classic or modern site features? 

Modern site features 
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Question 23: 

Answers (in green color): 

Is the existing SP storage of 4 TB belonging to these 11 team sites only? 

It belongs mainly to the existing filefolders 

Question 24: 

Answers (in green color): 

Are the 300000 network folders properly segragated department wise? 

Yes 

Question 25: 

Answers (in green color): 

Are there any redundant documents or cleaning, structuring process (department wise) expected to be done 

in these 300000 network folders by WCO before migration of documents? 

Yes 

Question 26: 

Answers (in green color): 

Is the organization currently also using MS Teams in addition to SharePoint Online? 

Yes. At this stage the Orgnization is not correctly using SP online. The scope of this project is help the WCO 

to organize and structure SP online. Teams site have been created using the organizational structure but SP 

online is not used at this stage correctly. 

Question 27: 

Answers (in green color): 

Where are the documents stored in on-premise environment in addition to network drives? 

Most of the WCO documents are stored in our network drives (on-premise), some are now in Teams as well. 

Question 28: 

Answers (in green color): 

Is it possible to get a high level report / statistics of documents volume department wise? 

This will be communicated during the analysis phase. 
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Question 29: 

Answers (in green color): 

Which are the different types / formats of documents stored? Which is the majority type of documents 

format? 

Majority types are word and excel document. 

Question 30: 

Answers (in green color): 

Are there any organization videos stored for WCO and where? 

There are also some videos stored. Even though conferences' video are stored externally. 

Question 31: 

Answers (in green color): 

Is there a dedicated YouTube video channel for WCO where the videos can be embedded? 

No 

Question 32: 

Answers (in green color): 

Are these organization videos available mostly for public view or internal view? 

Internal view. 

Question 33: 

Answers (in green color): 

Is MS Stream also used by WCO for videos and streaming purpose? 

No but it could be. Today we use Media server to store and review our videos. 

Question 34: 

Answers (in green color): 

How are the document created and is there a lifecycle process set in WCO organization? 

For most of the document there is no lifecycle process in place. The only existing process is in our meeting 

management system (MMS) which is used to prepare the set of documents needed for a conference. MMS 

is an application that stores these documents from which there is a lifecycle process. MMS is not in the 

scope of this project. 
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Question 35: 

Answers (in green color): 

Does the organization have a naming convention for documents already in place?  

No there is no naming convention at the organizational level. 

Question 36: 

Answers (in green color): 

If the organization has a naming convention already in place, is it across all departments?  

n/a 

Question 37: 

Answers (in green color): 

Do you want to maintain a specific naming convention / structure for DMS entities (Folders, Files etc)?  

Yes this is the intention of this project, to define WCO naming conventions to the best possible extend. 

Question 38: 

Answers (in green color): 

Who will defines and approves the same? Is there any document approval process?  

A project board has been created for this project who will review/approve all decisions. 

Question 39: 

Answers (in green color): 

What is typical document retention schedule? Is there a retention policy for documents?  

There is no retention policy currently. 

Question 40: 

Answers (in green color): 

Is there any auditing feature enabled for documents?  

No but will need to be configured in SP online. 
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Question 41: 

Answers (in green color): 

Are there any documents which need to support compliance with industry standards and regulations such 

as ISO 9001, DA 21 CFR Part 11, EU GMP, Annex 11, Sarbanes-Oxley, GDPR compliant?  

WCO is not obliged to follow industry standards. 

Question 42: 

Answers (in green color): 

How is metadata associated with document files and folders currently managed?  

There is no metadata, this is part of the project scope. 

Question 43: 

Answers (in green color): 

Is there a taxonomy definition available in the WCO for tagging documents?  

There is no metadata, this is part of the project scope. 

Question 44: 

Answers (in green color): 

Is there any digital signature generated in documents? Which software used for digital signature and 

adding in documents?  

There is no digital signature in place but this part of the project scope. Note that there is a separate budget 

for the acquisition of such tool. 

Question 45: 

Answers (in green color): 

How many workflows expected to be implemented based on contract management system?  

Estimated between 6 and 8. 
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Question 46: 

Answers (in green color): 

How is the current business process workflow managed and any 3rd party tool used for it or used in 

SharePoint?  

Currently business process workflows are done by emails and depends on each business processes 

(validation of documents, signature, etc.). 

Question 47: 

Answers (in green color): 

Can you elaborate more about current Contract management system and its process functionality and 

which departments involved? How many workflows involved?  

As of today there is no such system in place. The process is 100% manual where all documents are stored 

in the network drives. The Legal department is managing this process and the documents. Estimated 

between 6 and 8. 

Question 48: 

Answers (in green color): 

Can you elaborate more about current Data Classification model and its process functionality and which 

departments involved? How many workflows involved?  

There is no data classification in place at the WCO. This is part of Option 2 as listed in our RFP. 

Question 49: 

Answers (in green color): 

How is the permission managed on the document folders in network drives?  

Permission are requested to the Help desk by the end user. The process is not only correct but not secured. 

This will have to be reviewed during the implementation of this project. Currently, employees have access to 

the drive of their directorates (+ the organization-level drive). 

Question 50: 

Answers (in green color): 

Which are the different roles, permission level and groups created for document access?  

To be defined during the implementation of this project. 
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Question 51: 

Answers (in green color): 

Are there any existing AD groups for permission management for documents access departwise wise?  

There are groups for permission in the current filedrives but we expect to decommission those groups after 

the migration and only use Office 365 groups. 

Question 52: 

Answers (in green color): 

How do you keep track of confidential documents? Is there any policy set for organization?  

No 

Question 53: 

Answers (in green color): 

Is there any external sharing of documents currently done in WCO? Any process or workflow for it?  

Yes.  Users share documents with external users by email and or SP online but with no control/restrictions. 

This will have be implemented in this project. 

Question 54: 

Answers (in green color): 

How is single document level permissions handled in current system if it needs to be shared to a single 

department user or group?  

Users share documents with external users by email and or SP online but with no control/restrictions. This 

will have be implemented in this project. 

Question 55: 

Answers (in green color): 

How is the document collaboration currently done?  

For those using the Network drive it is difficult since they can only work on the document one after the other 

and then either send it by email for review or just save it for the next person to work on it. For those using 

already TEAMS it is easier since they can all collaborate on a document at the same time. 
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Question 56: 

Answers (in green color): 

How is the document archival process currently done?  

There is no archiving policy or procedure. 

Question 57: 

Answers (in green color): 

How is the co-authoring of documents handled?  

See above. 

Question 58: 

Answers (in green color): 

How is the versioning history of documents and final version currently managed before publishing for 

entire organization?  

This is managed in the network drive by each services but not constantly the same way. This project will 

need to review the process, the end goal is to transfer all these documents in SP and not use the network 

drives anymore. 

Question 59: 

Answers (in green color): 

How is the intra-department collaboration of document currently done?  

By email and soon we will launch the Share channel capability in TEAMS. 

Question 60: 

Answers (in green color): 

Is there any integration / reference of documents paths in on-premise or online application?  

There are certainly some references used. 

Question 61: 

Answers (in green color): 

Are there any documents dynamically generated, integrated with some process, code, service, scheduler or 

3rd party software and stored in the network path?  

No 
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Question 62: 

Answers (in green color): 

How is document search currently handled in WCO on network drives?  

There is not such capability in the shared drives. 

Question 63: 

Answers (in green color): 

How is document search currently handled in WCO SharePoint portal?  

Users use the standard search bar from SP however it is limited since there is no metadata, content type 

and/or classification of the information. This will be done during the project implementation. 

 

 

 


